# WARREN CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH

1869 - 1969

### APPENDIX

In the "Gift List" mention is made of the Rose Window and the Memorial Windows, but we would also call attention to a quite beautiful round window, on the river side of the Church and at the head of the stairway. Perhaps this also was a gift from Mr. S. D. Warren.

On page 21, there is an item in regard to Deacon Wm. Varnum and his Mission Sunday School in Windham. We have recently learned that Mrs. Varnum went with him to play the organ.

The 56th Annual Sunday School report is an "In Memoriam" to William H. Holston. Mr. Holston had been Secretary-Treasurer since our Sunday School was first started (July 10, 1869) until Sept. 21, 1925 - 56 years. Under his picture and dates of service are these words: "An enviable record". Mr. Holston was very much liked by all who knew him.

Reference has been made to the Young Ladies Choir and to the Warren Male Quartette, organized during Mr. Taylor's pastorate and continuing for a number of years. The Quartette members were: Mathias Mogan, Edward Axelson, Ernest Theis, and Leland Knight. A very fine Quartette! Their picture and a picture of the Young Ladies Choir are in our Scrapbook.

In the June 4, 1968 Secretary's report reference is made to the recently published By-Laws. A Committee of five had been working on them for some time. Now they are being rewritten to cover both churches. Mrs. Joseph D. Small, Registered Parlimentarian, is heading this committee.

We wish we had all of our Church calendars, but years ago they didn't seem so important. However, here are a few quite interesting dates:

Miss Mabel Foster was our organist for twenty-seven years, from 1914 through 1941.

Mrs. Marion Fernald was Pianist and Director of Young Folks' Choirs, working with them from 1940 through 1952. Pictures of the Choir groups are in the Scrapbook.

Miss Marjorie Anderson was our soloist for sixteen years, through 1958.

And here is another interesting item - interesting and unusual. On Maundy Thursday, March 29, 1956, in the evening Rev. Clarence H. Clark, our Minister, received into the Church sixty-eight new members. Of that number, eighteen were school age; the rest were adults. What a record!

We were very fortunate to have Mrs. Harold Myrick as our Choir Director, beginning in September, 1967. She continued as a Choir member through June, 1969. And we have been more than fortunate to have had Mr. Ralph Duso as our organist. He came to us in 1950 and remained with us through June of 1969. Mr. Duso was always willing to participate in special services and even to play the piano for the Christmas programs of the Woman's Fellowship, and for very special programs such as our "Mexican Fiesta" and "Cherry Blossom Festival". Miss Anderson also participated in these programs.

After studying some of the Church programs one cannot help but think how times have changed. With cantatas, plays, and pageants, young folks (and some older ones also) were never without something very interesting in which to participate. We have just recently been given a program of a 1923 Cantata, with nine Sopranos, eight Altos, six Tenors, thirteen Bass; with seventeen in the Young Ladies Chorus; three first violins, two second violins, a Cello and a Bass Viol, a Pianist, an Organist, and a Director - Mrs. Marion Theis. Our Warren Male Quartette was a part of this Group. Times have changed!

## The Woman's Missionary Society

Following are excerpts from the records of this Society, only recently located.

At the request of Rev. Jonas Taylor a special meeting was held after the regular business session of the Ladies Circle, on February 22nd, 1916, at the home of Mrs. Fred Verrill, for the purpose of presenting the work of the Woman's Missionary Society. Mr. Taylor opened the meeting with prayer and after making a few remarks he introduced Mrs. J. R. Libby and Miss Ellis, our State Missionary. Both ladies presented their subject in a very interesting way.

It was decided to organize immediately. The Constitution was read by Mrs. Libby and it was accepted. The first officers were: Mrs. Thomas Smith, President; Mrs. Charles Johnson, Vice President; Mrs. Jonas Taylor, Secretary; and Mrs. George Wilson, Treasurer.

At the first meeting it was decided to meet at the homes of the members once each month - with no refreshments. At the next meeting it was decided that they ask the Sunday School Supt. to "ascertain whether the Sunday School would be willing to give the proceeds of their Easter Concert to us". Apparently the Sunday School was willing because at the next meeting it was reported that the Easter Concert netted them eleven dollars and fifty cents.

Following the business at many of the meetings there were speakers from Portland, from So. Portland, from the Congregational Educational Society of Portland, and from greater distances.

At some of the meetings the women worked on quilts to be sent overseas, but usually the quilts were put together between meetings, and clothes to be sent in the barrels were made in the homes. From the records it would seem that at least one barrel was sent each year.

The "no refreshment plan" lasted only a very short time. The record indicates that refreshments were served at each meeting beginning with December 18, 1918; and, from that same date, at

practically all of the meetings there was a period of music -piano, violin, and vocal. The first program was Piano solo, Miss Tena Hawkes; Piano solo, Miss Helen Knight; Reading, Mrs. Rowe; Mandolin Solo, Clyde Rogers. "All the numbers were very greatly enjoyed and appreciated, and Mrs. Rowe and Master Clyde Rogers favored us with an encore.

Early in this first year Mite Boxes were distributed and at the December meeting the boxes were opened and the sum realized was \$67.14. The second year it was more than twice that amount.

Mrs. Taylor had been Secretary of this Missionary Society since its organization. Shortly after her husband's death she gave birth to a little daughter, and late in September of 1921 she was to sail to England. At the September 21st meeting, it was suggested that each one write a note to Mrs. Taylor to be opened by her on board ship.

The following item is under date of September 20, 1922: "It was voted to accept the gift of towels from the Craigie Class and Mrs. Macdonald was asked to thank the class in behalf of the Society". (We don't remember hemming those towels.)

"On Sunday evening, November 5, 1922, a Pageant, "The Lifting Hands", was given in costume at Warren Church. There were over thirty in the cast, each contributing his or her part to make the whole a success." The final report for that year is: "During the year the Society has held a Missionary Festival in March, a Cooked Food Sale in May, a Lawn Party in July, and a Pageant in November." Also, in 1922 Hospital Supplies were sent to the Hospital Department of Brewer Normal School, a barrel of clothing and bedding to Lexington, Kentucky, and \$250. to two Missions Boards. (Quite a record for one year!)

At a meeting in February of 1923, refreshments were served by the Covenant Daughters - some of our people will no doubt remember that group.

Something which has seemed very interesting in studying this Missionary record is that on several occasions our Mission Board has had speakers who have actually been in the Mission fields and have given first-hand accounts of conditions found there - particularly in China, Japan, and India. To such meet-

ings, women from the Westbrook Church were invited, and for similar meetings our women were invited to the Westbrook Church, and occasionally invitations were extended to other churches in the city, as in the following instance:

"On November 19 (1926), at 3 P.M., the Rev. Orville J. Guptill, the Missionary Pastor of the Maine Sea Coast Mission will be the speaker at the Ladies Parlor of the Westbrook Congregational Church. Mr. Guptill has worked among the fishermen of our coast for years and will tell of his trips on the Mission boat Sunbeam to the various island and seacoast towns of our State. The ladies of our Church would like to share this interesting program with the women of the other Churches of Westbrook. Will you help this meeting to be well advertised and urge a large attendance?"

In April, 1922, we were invited by the Westbrook Missionary Society to their Church to hear Rev. C. W. Eliopolas speak on his Americanization work among the Greeks of Maine. (Too bad we don't have recordings of some of these talks.)

There is record of quite a number of these joint meetings, but the following is particularly interesting:

"The February (1928) meeting of the Women's Missionary Society of Warren Church was held in the Church with the Ladies from the other Churches of Westbrook as guests. The President, Mrs. N. A. Macdonald, opened the meeting by extending a cordial welcome to the ladies of the other churches. A short praise service was held with Mrs. Plummer at the piano. This was followed by prayer by Mrs. Tilton of the Baptist Church and Mrs. Wentworth of the Advent Church. Scripture was read by Mrs. Winslow of the Universalist Church. The Hymn, "Oh Master Let Me Walk With Thee" was sung by all. Mrs. Wheat of the Methodist Church followed with prayer. A selected poem was read by Mrs. Saunders of the West End Congregational Church. Miss Elizabeth Perkins, returned missionary from China was then introduced and gave a very interesting talk on her work in the girls' school, Wen Chen. After this all were invited into the Annex, which had been made to look very cozy and homelike by a committee of which Mrs. Thos. Smith was Chairman. Delicious refreshments of sandwiches, cookies and tea were served and a social hour was enjoyed, giving the ladies an opportunity to meet Miss Perkins and also to

become better acquainted with each other. An invitation was received from the Universalist Society to meet with them at the Westbrook Tavern on March 1st. There were fifty present."

Another interesting item is as follows: "Mrs. Frank Cloudman gave a splendid talk on personal experience as a Social Worker among our foreign peoples, especially the Italians. After listening to Mrs. Cloudman one must realize how love, sympathy and unselfishness are the real factors in being a successful worker among these new Americans." (This is from the April, 1924 report.)

"Miss Lombard of the Westbrook High School Faculty gave a very interesting talk on her work as a teacher in a Mission School in Puerto Rico. Miss Lombard also showed many pictures of the school and pupils, which added much to her talk." (April, 1929)

On April 22, 1931, "Miss Verrill presented as the evening speaker, Mrs. Rodney Roundy, who gave a most interesting talk on the State Work, especially stressing the Sea Coast Mission".

On January 19, 1932, "Mrs. Prince announced that a Silver Tea would be given in the Church on Monday afternoon, January 25th, by the Ladies of the Missionary Society and the Ladies Circle. Rev. Charles Miller, a returned missionary from India, would be the speaker."

At the February, 1932 meeting the matter of combining all the societies of the Church into one organization was discussed and at the March meeting "it was moved and seconded that the Missionary Society merge with the Ladies Circle". Apparently this merger did not take place immediately because under date of May 24, 1932 we have this statement: "We have had interesting programs at our meetings and very pleasant social evenings. And, we trust that the merging of the Ladies Circle and the Missionary Society will increase our interest both financially and socially."

In reading the records of the Woman's Missionary Society it has been interesting to find that quite a number of the young folks provided entertainment at their meetings, with both vocal and instrumental music, and with some readings. The dates below indicate a first performance - some performed several times and quite frequently Mrs. Plummer played the accompaniment.

1918 Duet by Lillian Bragdon and Mrs. Guy Plummer; Mandolin solo by Norman Swett, with Lillian Bragdon at the piano; Master Howard Chadsey, piano; Margaret Graham, piano; Tena Hawkes, piano; Clyde Rogers, Mandolin.

1919 Elsie Bragdon and Mrs. Plummer, duet; Tena Hawkes, mandolin, with Grace Manchester, piano; Mrs. Taylor, solo, with Martha Knight at the piano.

1920 Duet by Grace and Georgia Manchester; piano solo by Master Linwood Lagerson.

1921 "Double Duet" by Grace and Georgia Manchester, Helen Knight and Mrs. Jonas Taylor; mandolin and piano by Grace and Mabel Boomer; piano duet by Margaret Smith and Arlene Merrick; vocal duet by Eleanor Fraser and Norwood Macdonald.

1922 Doris Allen, violin, accompanied by Pearl Sinclair at the piano solo by Myrle Elwell with Marion Kelly at the piano.

1923 Mrs. Raymond Moore, accompanied by Mrs. Marion Theis; Singing by the "Young Ladies Choir"

Macdonald. May 21, 1924 "Misses Jean Macdonald, Doris Allen and Arlene Merrick entertained with music." And, in 1924, Mrs. Cheever Smith sang "I'll go where you want me to go".

1926 Arlene Merrick, Cello Solo; Miriam Boothby, piano solo; and "Miss Mildred Burnham, vocal solo, accompanied by Helen Knight".

1927 Clyde Hulit, piano

1928 Cello solos by Evelyn Randall, accompanied by Miriam Boothby; Mrs. Olivette Kimball sang two solos.

1929 "Shirley Pratt sang a solo and also spoke a piece." Cornet and trombone by Albert Verrill, Jr. and Thomas Verrill; and violin solo by Elizabeth Knight, accompanied by Margaret Knight.

1930 Vocal solo by Margaret Stokes; and, "A group of young ladies from our Church Choir sang Christmas carols".

There were several violin solos by Mrs. Bassett, and there were readings by Katherine Hallowell, Irene Lagerson, Margaret Davis, Pearl Sinclair, Theo Anderson, and Agnes Pratt, and quite a number of piano accompaniments by Helen Knight.

## MINISTERS OF WARREN CHURCH

Wilder Off Office	
Rev. Elijah Kellogg	May 1869 - Sept. 1870
Rev. Jeremiah Ellsworth Fullerton "Acting Minister" "Stated Supply"	Sept. 8, 1870 - Sept. 1, 1872
Rev. Addison Blanchard	Dec. 10, 1872 - Nov. 14, 1877
Rev. John O. Wilson, Supply	Nov. 18, 1877 - Sept. 1878
Rev. Edward S. Tead	Sept.17, 1878 - April 1884
Rev. Edgar W. Cousins	May 118, 1884 - Sept. 21, 1893
Rev. David Martyn	Dec. 1893 - Feb. 3, 1895
Rev. William G. Mann	June 28, 1895 - Apr. 29, 1903
Rev. Edward E. Keedy	Nov. 21, 1903 - June 22, 1916
Rev. Jonas Taylor	Jan. 1917 - June 22, 1921
Rev. Roderick A. Macdonald	Feb. 1922 - June 10, 1947
Dr. E. A. E. Palmquist	July 1947 - Sept. 1, 1948
Rev. Clarence H. Clark	Sept. 1948 - May 31, 1957
Rev. Herbert W. Keebler	Sept. 1, 1957 - June 1960
Rev. Morten Sorensen	Oct. 1960 - Mar. 30, 1961
Rev. Floyd G. Kinsley	Apr. 4, 1961 - Oct. 31, 1968
Rev. Clarence H. Clark, Interim	Nov. 1, 1968 -

city.

#### GIFTS TO WARREN CHURCH

- The first gift to Warren Church was the deed to the lot on /868 which the Church stands, by Samuel Dennis Warren. Mr. Warren also paid half the cost of the building, and its furnishings.
- Warren, purchased by him in Italy. This window is one of five pg 4 6 in the United States, but we were unable to learn the name of the artist. INSTALLED SIDMAIN ST (new church bidg Aug 25, 1977
- Steeple Clock The Clock, gift of interested citizens, was placed in the Steeple in 1872. STORED, SAWATTON SOLVE
- Organ The first organ was purchased in 1873, largely through the efforts of the ladies of the Parish. Trom 36 Replaced
- Parsonage Mr. S. D. Warren purchased the lot on which the Parsonage stands, and paid for construction of the building in 1880. It was later purchased by the Church from S. D. Warren Company.
- $\bigcirc$  Bell The present bell was purchased by members of the Church and Parish, in 1885, heavier and better toned than the first one.
- Thirteen Pews Deacon Elisha Newcomb purchased seventeen pews.

  By his Will, thirteen were returned to the Church.
- (g) Brass Candlesticks A gift by Miss Cornélia Warren.
- $\frac{$1000}{as}$  By will of Deacon Charles W. Mace, in 1924, to be known as "The Jane S. Elder Mace Fund".
- $\frac{\text{Small Pulpit Bible}}{1930}$  Given by the Young People's Council, in
- (i) \$315. By Will of Mrs. Caroline Washburn, in 1934.
- $\frac{1}{2}\sqrt{\frac{\text{Baptismal Font}}{\text{Family}}}$  In 1936, in Memory of King F. Graham, by his
- \$2000. By Will of Laura E. Foster, from which were installed two Memorial Windows one in her memory, the other in memory of Rev. Jonas Taylor in 1936.

- Two Hymn Boards Made by Deacon Alexander Levitch.
- Brass Cross For the Chancel a Gift of the Woman's League,
- American Flag For the Sunday School, from Capt. Geo. Dow Auxiliary, in 1941.
- Waterhouse Fund In 1942, by Will of Almon N. Waterhouse, the Church received \$5000., the interest on which was to be used for Current Church expenses.
- Candelabra The brass candelabra were given by Mrs. Everett P. Ingalls and her Church School Class. Mrs. Ingalls taught this class throughout their High School years, during which time they accumulated money with which to make a gift to the Church upon their graduation from High School in 1942.
- $\frac{19}{19}$  The Christian and American Flags were presented by the Church School in 1942.
- Byron Smith Bequest in 1942, by the Will of Byron Smith, the Church received \$1000. for a window in Memory of his Father, Mother, and Sister, the balance of the Bequest to be used at the discretion of the Parish Committee.
- Kneeling Bench Made and presented by Deacon Alexander Levitch. STage
- Charter Member Tablet A bronze tablet, bearing the names of the Charter Members of the Church, was presented to the Church at the Seventy-Fifth Anniversary meeting, by the Children, Grandchildren, and Great-Grandchildren of the Charter Members, October 2, 1944.
- Charter Member Album Also at the Seventy-Fifth Anniversary celebration an album of photographs of the Charter Members was presented to the Church.
- Candle Lighters In 1946, a pair of brass candle lighters was given to the Church by the Junior Department of the Church School.

- Communion Table Given by Deacon Alexander Levitch in Memory of his wife, Ida G. Levitch 1946.
- Brass Altar Vases Given to the Church in 1947, by Mrs. Annie Graham Cartret. Diaconata a lary seepq36 157 deaconess
- Organ Chimes A set of Cathedral Organ Chimes was given by Henry S. Cobb, in Memory of his Wife, Agnes Millions Cobb, and dedicated April 13, 1947.
- Communion Trays On October 5, 1947, four additional communion trays, with glasses and covers, were used for the first time the gift of Deacon Walter E. Swett.
- Record Board For use of Sunday School made and given by Owen Wood, in 1947.
- Pulpit Bible The Pulpit Bible was given in Memory of Mrs. Mary B. Smith, by her children. Dedicated, March 14, 1948.
- Small Brass Candlesticks for the Sunday School were given by Mrs. George Simpson's Sunday School Class. 1949.
- Gothic Screen for the Sunday School, made and given by Owen Stage Wood, in 1940. Repaired & painted by IRVING MARSTERS 1978
- \$3000. Given by the Woman's League, in 1950, for the Organ (33) Chancel Fund.
- Pulpit, Lectern and Choir Seats Given in Memory of Mrs. Fred W. Esty, by her husband 1950.
- Members 1950
- Chancel developed, new Organ installed, Retable and Dossal Hanging placed, Sanctuary and Vestibule entirely redecorated all through the generosity of many members 1950. (List of contributors is in the Book of Remembrance.)
- Worship Center in the John E. Warren Room built by Adrian Lowell in 1950.

stand glaw windown

1977

Cleaned at WARRENSEPT. 12+13 REMOVED to 810 MAIN ST and in Stalled 14-15-16th Lig BERNIER STUDIOS

MEMORIAL WINDOWS

Description of Window:

In Memory Of:

The Book, and the Light-Symbols of Learning for the Boy Jesus

"My late wife Annie May Watson my daughter Louise Eldena Reece and her Late Husband, Leverett A. Reece"

Christ Blessing the Children Bequest of Henry S. Cobb

"Henry S. and His Wife Agnes Millions Cobb"

Crossed Palm Branches
Bequest of Byron Smith

"William Smith His Wife Olive G. Smith and Daughter Ada B. Smith 1942"

The Shepherd
By their daughter,
Clara E. Verrill

(2) "Fred A. and Mary T. Verrill"

The Nativity

"King F. Graham, James W. Graham,
Annie Graham Cartret"

Head of Christ By gifts of many Friends "Rev. Roderick A. Macdonald Pastor 1922-1947"

Rev. JONAS TAYLOR

North
5109
610 HANN) CRUSSED PALMS
Back
NIGHTED

Head of Christ

IN MEMORY OF

WILLIAM SMITCH

his wise OLIVECISMITH

Adam ADA B SMITH 1942

In Mamory of

LAURA FOSTOR

- Communion Plate Stands made and given by Deacon Thomas D. Smith, in 1953.
- New Pilgrim Hymnals List of contributors is in the Book of Remembrance 1953.
- Jessie McFarland Fund \$1,500. 1954.
  Interest to be used "in aiding the needy".
- (42) From the Henry S. Cobb Estate \$34,998.16 1955
- Antependium and two Bible Markers, by Mrs. Ann Marion, in Memory of Mr. and Mrs. Ned T. Marion and Mr. Harold G. Marion Easter, 1955.
- (44) Three Speed Record Player -

In Memory of:

By:

Mr. George Sullivan

Katherine Sullivan

Mr. and Mrs. Frank H. Millions

Mr. and Mrs. Nelson R. Davis

Jean Millions

Mr. and Mrs. Henry S. Cobb

Mr. Philip D. Cook, and

Freddie and Victoria Cook

Mr. Wilson M. Wright

Mrs. Philip D. Cook

Mr. and Mrs. John Schumaker and Rev. and Mrs. Clarence Clark

- Double Kneeling Bench Made by Rev. Herbert W. Keebler with wood from the decorative framing of the original organ October, 1957.
- Lillian J. Cook Fund \$2,000.
  In Memory of Lillian J. Cook and George F. Cook. 1957.
- Communion Table Cloth Presented by Mr. and Mrs. Evans H. Libby "In grateful appreciation of Warren Church" February, 1958.
- (48) Lot on Marrett Street Given by William Lamb 1958.
- 49 Lottie F. Murray Balance of Estate \$2868.68 1958.

- In Memory of Nelson R. and Sarah Millions Davis 1958 \$1,500. by their daughters: Margaret, Dorothy and Barbara Davis, toward completion of the Parish House.
- Plummer Bequest \$5,000 and \$2,590 Residual Share of Estate
  By Will of John Plummer in Memory of John Plummer and Charlotte
  Butler Plummer. 1958.
- Pair of Brass Candle Sticks for Gainsborough Room

  Made and given by Herbert W. Keebler, Sr.
- 53 Silver Communion Service (F. Hoff ashing)
  In Memory of Valerie J. Esty, by her parents, Mr. and Mrs.
  Clyde S. Esty.
- 01d Photograph of Warren Church, which had belonged to Mr. Charles Leighton, given by his grandson, Philip D. Leighton.
- Table for Gainsborough Room
  In Memory of Mrs. Mary Snow Dyer, by her Friends.
- End Table for Gainsborough Room
  In Memory of Mrs. Mary E. Wood, by her Friends.
- (5) Watercolor for Gainsborough Room Painted and given by Edward Mayo.
- Picture for Sunday School Class Room
  "All Things Wise and Wonderful" In Memory of Freddie and
  Victoria Cook, by their mother, Mrs. Philip D. Cook.
- Picture for Sunday School Class Room

  "O Come, Let Us Sing Unto the Lord", in Memory of Charles B.
  and Rose Burnell Graham, by their niece, Martha Libby Whitman.
- Grand Piano for Gainsborough Room
  In Memory of Joseph A. Warren and Georgia Pottle Warren, by their daughters, Josephine W. Cole and Lois W. Humphrey, and by Friends. \$10 main SANCTUARY + CASTORS (1977)
- $\underbrace{\omega}$   $\frac{$289.00 \text{ to Parish House Fund}}{\text{by Friends.}}$  in Memory of Everett R. Coffin

- \$76.00 to Parish House Fund, in Memory of Deacon-Emeritus Alexander V. Levitch, by Friends.
- 50 Hymnals for Sunday School, in Memory of Dora Rines Wood, Herbert W. Keebler, Sr., and James M. Kelly, by Friends.
- Memorial Book Cabinet, in Memory of Ernest Theis, by Friends;
  and in Memory of Fred A. and Mary T. Verrill, by their daughter
  Clara E. Verrill. Key & 10 MAIN Mathex 9/28'77 Both backet friends.
  - Two Benches for Hall of Parish House, in Memory of Mrs. Almery Hamblen (Beatrice Doughty), by Mr. and Mrs. Calvin Hamblen, Mr. and Mrs. Henry Hamblen, Dr. and Mrs. Charles Hamblen Mr. and Mrs. Joseph H. Hamblen, Jr., Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Dolan, Mr. Joseph Hamblen, and Mrs. Frank Brown.
- Large Silver Pitcher Inscribed: "Presented to Jon. E. Warren by Members of Sabbath School Class, Feb. 24th, 1883", given to the Church by Mr. Warren's granddaughter, Josephine Warren Cole.
- (67) American Flag Given by Charles Knowles.
- Butane Candles for Candelabra and Candle Sticks Given by Natalie Reeces Barry + Manchelle & Windham (Not used now
- Brass Wood Basket for Gainsborough Room and Books for the Library, in Memory of Mrs. George Simpson.
- (70) <u>Linen Communion Table Cover</u> Given by Arthur W. Bragdon.
- Refectory Table, by Will of Helen Winship.
- (12) \$5,000. By Will of Julia E. Winslow 1967.
- Christian Flag, in Memory of Mr. and Mrs. Henry Boomer, by their Family Easter, 1968.
- Two Plant Stands Built by Cleveland Parker, and given to the Church.
- (75) We trust that no gift has been omitted from this list.
- (86) Baptismal Fort basin + silver vase (bace separated) to \$10

Well, we did slip up on one item. Could it be because we have looked at it for so long? (1) A Bible, which for quite some time has been on the altar table, belonged to Mr. James Graham - one of our Charter members. It was given to us by Mrs. Joseph E. Whitman.

(77)

(78)

DedICATION OCT. 30, 1977 new church at 810 MAIN ST.

The Bell TowER 1978

Swien In Loving memory of 810 Main

Harry W. Saunders

alice Woodbury Saunders

Mary Mattocks Saunders

H. Warren Saunders

Sift of

Henry W. + Marjorie H. Saunders

THE MINIST ER'S STUDY Guien In memary of TERRY SCOTT JORDAN by Phelip Jordan

THE ASSOCIATE MINISTER'S STUDY Given In memory of, MICHAEL ALLEN RACKLEY BY

HIS FAMILY

Westbrook memorial Organ installed 810 main St. by Best Witham THE MACHINE ROOM (80) Leven In memory of EMMA LAND HARRY L. MARSTERS MAG B. AND FRED W. CLEMENT By. IRVINE AND WINNIE MARSTERS THE RESOURCE CENTER Given In memory of WALTER SWETT (82 THE KINDERGARTEN ROOM marion Levien In memory of DONALD E. LEIGHTON HIS FAMILY AND FRIENDS (86) Selver Tea Survice THE PUBLIC ADDRESS SYSTEM (SANCTUARY) Gevin In memory of MR. T MRS. JOSEPH D. SMALL (84) THE NARTHEX CLOAKROOM Leven In memory of John C. STINCHFIELD by. MRS. JOHN C. STINCAFIELD (80) THE EFFICIENCY APARTMENT Leven In memory of. MRS.LAURA ESTY CLYDE S. ESTEY, SR. VALERIE J. ESTY

